# INDUSTRIAL & COMMERCIAL HOLDINGS PLC REPORT AND ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

Registered No. 4024879



# CONTENTS

STRATEGIC REPORT	1
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS	. 2
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE	4
STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE ACCOUNTS	5
REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS	6
CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT	9
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET	9
COMPANY BALANCE SHEET	10
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS	11
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY	12
COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY	12
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS	13
NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING	17
FORM OF PROXY	21

# STRATEGIC REPORT

East Dunbartonshire Council (the "Council") is currently working on a new Local Development Plan ("LDP") for the area. The LDP is a land use plan and guides the future use of land in East Dunbartonshire by indicating where new development should be directed to. It also sets out those areas that should be protected from development. Early engagement and evidence gathering, which included a "call for sites", took place between 3 December 2018 and 11 February 2019.

Through its development partner, Mactaggart & Mickel ("M&M"), a representation was submitted to the Council for the Company's landholding in Milngavie, Scotland (the "Site") to be included in the Council's new LDP. The total site area promoted was circa. 32 hectares, with circa. 5 hectares being promoted for the development of circa. 50 – 55 homes. The remainder of the Site was proposed to be retained as publicly accessible open space. M&M will continue to inform both the political representatives and the public as to the benefits to be gained from an overall development strategy of the entire Site. It is considered that such an approach will at least inform and hopefully help to assure all parties how development will lead to improvements and a strengthening of their local boundaries.

The Scottish Government requires all planning authorities to prepare a Development Plan Scheme ("DPS") at least annually. The purpose of the DPS is to set out the planning authority's programme for preparing and reviewing its Local Development Plan. The Council published its initial Main Issues Report ("MIR") on 15 October 2019. Consultations on the MIR were conducted between 15 October 2019 and 10 December 2019 and further representations were made on behalf of the Company's landholding between November-December 2019.

The final MIR was due to be published in March 2020 however due to delays, in part relating to the effects of Covid-19, discussions remain ongoing at this time.

The Board awaits publication of the Council's final MIR and remains optimistic that shareholders will be able to realise value from their holdings in due course.

Approved by the Board on 21 October 2020 and signed on its behalf.

City Group PLC
Company Secretary
30 October 2020
Company No. 4024879

# REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors submit their report and the audited accounts of the Company and the Group for the year ended 30 June 2020.

#### **RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS**

The Group suffered a loss of £11,419 arising through property and development expenses (2019 - loss of £22,155) arising through property and development expenses. The Directors do not recommend payment of a dividend in respect of the financial year.

# PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

There is limited credit risk from monies held by independently rated banks.

# **DIRECTORS**

The Directors who have held office during the year were as follows:

C P Latilla-Campbell

D C Marshall

E J Beale

The Directors have no interests in the shares of the subsidiary company, Dougalston Limited. The interests of Directors in the Company are as follows: -

	30 June	30 June
	2020	2019
•	Number of shares	Number of shares
C P Latilla-Campbell	-	-
D C Marshall	•	-
E J Beale	63,750	63,750

Mr E J Beale and Mr D C Marshall are directors of Western Selection PLC and consequently have an interest in 15,252,744 ordinary shares in the Company by virtue of Western Selection PLC's shareholding in the Company. Mr C P Latilla-Campbell has a beneficial interest in 5,312,500 ordinary shares in the Company held by Buchanan Trading Inc. There have been no changes in Directors' interests since 30 June 2020.

# **SUBSTANTIAL INTERESTS**

At 20 October 2020, being the latest practicable date prior to the publication of this document, the Company was aware of the following interests which represented three per cent or more of the Company's issued share capital:

	Number of shares	% of capital
Western Selection PLC	15,252,744	29.9
Takeoff Asset Management Ltd	8,615,842	16.9
Mr T P King	5,415,576	10.6
Buchanan Trading Inc	5,312,500	10.4
Mr E Dangoor	3,850,907	7.6
Lomond Property and Whisky Management Ltd	2,984,158	5.9
Mr D Wyley	2,125,212	4.2

.. .

# **AUDITORS**

A resolution to re-appoint SRG LLP as auditors will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting of the Company, to be held on 3 December 2020, in accordance with Section 489 of the Companies Act 2006.

# SPECIAL BUSINESS TO BE TRANSACTED AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

In addition to the ordinary business referred to in Resolutions 1 to 3 of the Notice of Annual General Meeting at the end of this document, the Directors propose special business as set out in Resolution 4 of the Notice of Annual General Meeting.

Resolution number 4 will, if passed, grant the Directors authority to allot, pursuant to Section 551 of the Companies Act 2006, £500,000 in nominal amount of the Company's authorised but unissued share capital.

Resolutions 4 is a standard resolution and the Company has no plans at present to issue any further shares. It is being proposed to allow flexibility in the unlikely circumstances that M&M terminates the conditional sale agreement early.

Approved by the Board on 30 October 2020 and signed on its behalf.

Citý Group PLC Company Secretary

Company No. 4024879

3

# **CORPORATE GOVERNANCE**

Premium listed companies are required under the Financial Conduct Authority Listing Rules either to comply with the provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code (2018) (the "Code") or explain to investors reasons for not doing so. The Company's ordinary shares are not listed on the London Stock Exchange nor dealt in on the AIM market of the London Stock Exchange nor are they listed or traded on any other stock exchange and accordingly no disclosures are required. This is not a statement of compliance as required by the Code and should therefore not be relied upon to give the disclosure required by the Code.

The Board recognises that good corporate governance is central to the effective leadership and long-term success of a company and the Company follows the Code wherever it is reasonable to do so. The Company operates an effective board, which includes non-executive Directors. The appointment of Directors is a matter for the entire Board. Each Director is required to retire every three years in accordance with the Articles of Association.

The Company has no Audit Committee as the entire Board takes responsibility for the review of financial reporting and all material internal controls, including financial, operational controls and risk management. The responsibility on a day to day basis for maintaining a sound system of internal controls rests with the directors of City Group PLC which provides day to day administration, accounting and company secretarial services to the Group.

The Company has no Remuneration Committee because the Company has no employees and the remuneration of each Director is limited by the Articles of Association and set out in detail in the statutory accounts which are laid before shareholders in General Meeting. None of the Directors has a service contract or letter of appointment with the Company. There are no share options in issue.

The Board is committed to ethical leadership and has a working understanding of the effect of applicable laws, rules, codes and standards on the Company. The Board is aware of the requirements of the Code and the need for appropriate controls and systems to safeguard the Company's assets. Wherever possible, appropriate controls are put in place and monitored by the Board. However full compliance with the Code is not possible nor appropriate because of the size and resource constraints within the Company and because of the relative cost benefit assessment of putting in place the additional procedures.

The Directors, after making enquiries, have a reasonable expectation that the Company has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. They therefore continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the annual report and the Company's financial statements.

# STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE ACCOUNTS

The Directors are responsible for preparing the annual report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the Directors have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law). Under company law the Directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the profit or loss of the Company for that period.

In preparing those financial statements, the Directors are required to:

- (a) select suitable accounting policies and apply them consistently;
- (b) make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
- (c) state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and
- (d) prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Company will continue in business.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

After making enquiries and examining key areas which could give rise to significant financial exposure the Directors are satisfied that no material or significant exposures exist, other than as reflected in these financial statements, and that the Company has adequate resources to continue its operations for the foreseeable future. For this reason, they continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the annual report and the Company's financial statements.

All of the current Directors have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any information needed by the Company's auditors for the purposes of their audit and to establish that the auditors are aware of that information. The Directors are not aware of any relevant audit information of which the auditors are unaware.

by Order of the Board

City Group PLC
Company Secretary
30 October 2020
Company No. 4024879

# REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

#### TO THE MEMBERS OF INDUSTRIAL & COMMERCIAL HOLDINGS PLC

# Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Industrial & Commercial Holdings Plc (the 'parent company') and its subsidiary (the 'group') for the year ended 30 June 2020 which comprise the consolidated profit and loss account, consolidated balance sheet, company balance sheet, consolidated statement of cash flows, consolidated statement of changes in equity, company changes in equity, and the related notes, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including FRS 102 The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

This report is made solely to the company's members, as a body, in accordance with chapter 3 of part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company's members and trustees those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

In our opinion the financial statements:

- give a true and fair view of the state of the group's and of the parent company's affairs as at 30 June 2020 and of the group's loss for the year then ended;
- have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice;
- have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

## **Basis for opinion**

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

# Conclusions relating to going concern

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require us to report to you where:

- the directors' use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is not appropriate; or
- the directors have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt about the group's or the parent company's ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

# Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, other than the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

# Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

- the information given in the strategic report and directors' report for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and
- the strategic report and directors' report has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

#### Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and the parent company and its environment obtained in the course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the directors' report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

- adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from branches not visited by us; or
- the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns;
   or
- certain disclosures of directors' remuneration specified by law are not made; or
- we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or
- the directors were not entitled to take advantage of the small companies' exemptions in preparing the directors' report and from the requirement to prepare a strategic report.

# Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the directors' responsibilities statement, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group's and the parent company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the group or the parent company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

# Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs (UK), we exercise professional judgment and maintain

professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
  error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
  sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
  misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
  collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
  are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
  effectiveness of the group's internal control.
- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.
- Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors' use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the group's or the parent company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the group or the parent company to cease to continue as a going concern.
- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
- Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
  activities within the group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
  responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
  responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Shaw

Trevor Clarke (Senior Statutory Auditor) for and on behalf of SRG LLP Statutory Auditor 10 Bolt Court, London, EC4A 3DA

30 October 2020

# CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT For the year ended 30 June

Year ended 30 June	Notes	2020 £	2019 £
Other Operating Income		25,000	25,027
Administration, Development and Property expenses		(36,899)	(47,634)
Operating loss		(11,899)	(22,607)
Bank interest receivable Interest payable		370 -	452
Loss before taxation	5	(11,529)	(22,155)
Tax expense	7		(00.455)
Loss after taxation		(11,529)	(22,155)
Total comprehensive expense for the financial year attributable to the equity holders		(11,529)	(22,155)
Basic loss per share	8	(0.02)p	(0.04)p
All activities derive from continuing operations.			
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET			
As at 30 June			
As at 30 June		2020	2019
	Notes	2020 £	2019 £
As at 30 June  Fixed Assets Freehold property	Notes 9		
Fixed Assets Freehold property		£	£
Fixed Assets		£	£
Fixed Assets Freehold property Current assets		£131135,925	£ 42,125
Fixed Assets Freehold property  Current assets Trade and other receivables Cash at bank		£ 42,125 131	£ 42,125
Fixed Assets Freehold property  Current assets Trade and other receivables Cash at bank  Current liabilities	9	£ 42,125  131 135,925 136,056	£ 42,125  131 143,251 143,382
Fixed Assets Freehold property  Current assets Trade and other receivables Cash at bank  Current liabilities Creditors due within one year		£ 42,125  131 135,925 136,056 (12,327)	£ 42,125  131 143,251 143,382 (8,124)
Fixed Assets Freehold property  Current assets Trade and other receivables Cash at bank  Current liabilities	9	£ 42,125  131 135,925 136,056	£ 42,125  131 143,251 143,382
Fixed Assets Freehold property  Current assets Trade and other receivables Cash at bank  Current liabilities Creditors due within one year	9	£ 42,125  131 135,925 136,056 (12,327)	£ 42,125  131 143,251 143,382 (8,124)
Fixed Assets Freehold property  Current assets Trade and other receivables Cash at bank  Current liabilities Creditors due within one year Net current assets  Total assets less current liabilities  Capital and reserves	9	131 135,925 136,056 (12,327) 123,729	£ 42,125  131 143,251 143,382 (8,124) 135,258
Fixed Assets Freehold property  Current assets Trade and other receivables Cash at bank  Current liabilities Creditors due within one year Net current assets  Total assets less current liabilities  Capital and reserves Called up share capital	9 11	£ 42,125  131 135,925 136,056 (12,327) 123,729 165,854	£ 42,125  131 143,251 143,382 (8,124) 135,258  177,383
Fixed Assets Freehold property  Current assets Trade and other receivables Cash at bank  Current liabilities Creditors due within one year Net current assets  Total assets less current liabilities  Capital and reserves Called up share capital Share premium account	9	£ 42,125  131 135,925 136,056  (12,327) 123,729  165,854  509,956 26,534	£ 42,125  131 143,251 143,382 (8,124) 135,258  177,383  509,956 26,534
Fixed Assets Freehold property  Current assets Trade and other receivables Cash at bank  Current liabilities Creditors due within one year Net current assets  Total assets less current liabilities  Capital and reserves Called up share capital	9 11	£ 42,125  131 135,925 136,056 (12,327) 123,729 165,854	£ 42,125  131 143,251 143,382 (8,124) 135,258  177,383

These financial statements were approved by the Board on 30 October 2020.

Signed on behalf of the Board

E J Beale Director

The notes set out on pages 13 to 16 form part of these financial statements.

Company No. 4024879

# **COMPANY BALANCE SHEET**

As at 30 June

Company Number 4024879	Notes	2020 £	2019 £
Fixed Assets Investments in Group companies	10 _	160	160
Current assets Amounts receivable from Group Company Trade and other receivables Cash and cash equivalents  Trade and other payables – due within one year Net current assets	_ 11 _	42,123 131 135,925 178,179 (12,327) 165,852	42,123 131 143,251 185,505 (8,124) 177,381
Total assets less current liabilities	_	166,012	177,541
Capital and reserves Called up share capital Share premium account Profit and Loss Account Total equity shareholders' funds	12 13	509,956 26,534 (370,478) 166,012	509,956 26,534 (358,949) 177,541

These financial statements were approved by the Board on 30 October 2020.

Signed on behalf of the Board

E J Beale Company No. 4024879

Director

The notes set out on pages 13 to 16 form part of these financial statements.

# CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS For the year ended 30 June

	2020 £	2019 £
Cash flows from operating activities Loss for the financial year	(11,529)	(22,155)
Adjustments for: Interest received	(370)	(452)
Decrease in trade debtors	•	(131)
Increase/(Decrease) in trade creditors	4,203	(1,166)
Net cash absorbed by operating activities	<u>(7,696)</u>	(23,904)
Cash flows from investing activities		
Interest received	370	452
Net cash from investing activities	370	452
Decrease in cash and cash equivalents	(7,326)	(23,452)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year	143,251	166,703
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year	135,925	143,251

The notes set out on pages 13 to 16 form part of these financial statements.

# **CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY**

	Called up share capital £	Share premium account £	Profit and loss account £	Attributable to the equity holders £
At 1 July 2018	509,956	26,534	(336,952)	199,538
Loss for the year	<u>-</u> _		(22,155)	(22,155)
At 30 June 2019	509,956	26,534	(359,107)	177,383
Loss for the year	•	•	(11,529)	(11,529)
At 30 June 2020	509,956	26,534	(370,636)	165,854

# **COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY**

	Called up share capital £	Share premium account £	Profit and loss account £	Attributable to the equity holders
At 1 July 2018	509,956	26,534	(336,794)	199,696
Loss for the year	<u>-</u>		(22,155)	(22,155)
At 30 June 2019	509,956	26,534	(358,949)	177,541
Loss for the year		-	(11,529)	(11,529)
At 30 June 2020	509,956	26,534	(370,478)	166,012

The notes set out on pages 13 to 16 form part of these financial statements.

# NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company is a public company, limited by shares, incorporated and domiciled in the United Kingdom. The registered office is situated at 1 Ely Place, London EC1N 6RY and the company registration number is 4024879. The principal activity of the Company is development and building projects.

#### 1. Basis of accounting

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with applicable United Kingdom standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 – 'The Financial Reporting Standard' applicable in the United Kingdom and Republic of Ireland ('FRS 102'), and with the Companies Act 2006.

The accounts have been prepared on the historical cost basis.

# 2. Going concern

The emergence of Covid-19 as a global pandemic in March 2020 has had a profound effect globally and the consequences of which are still being felt both socially and financially in the United Kingdom. Due to the nature of the Company, it has been shielded from the majority of the negative consequences of the pandemic, however it has the potential to be affected by indirect consequences such as the slowdown of the overall approval process.

Despite this, after reviewing the Company's forecasts and projections, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. The Company continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing its financial statements

# 3. Significant judgments and estimates

The preparation of the financial statements requires the Directors to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts in the financial statements. The Directors continually evaluates its judgements and estimates in relation to assets, liabilities, contingent liabilities, income and expenditure. The Directors base their judgement, estimates and assumptions on historical experience and on other various factors, including expectations of future events, which the management believes to be reasonable under the circumstances. There are no critical accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions that are likely to affect the current or future years.

# 4. Principle accounting policies

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with applicable Accounting Standards in the United Kingdom. A summary of the more important accounting policies, which have been applied consistently, is set out below.

These consolidated accounts include the results of the subsidiary company, Dougalston Limited, for the year ended 30 June 2020. Results of subsidiaries are included from their effective date of acquisition to their effective dates of disposal.

Under Section 408(3) of the Companies Act 2006, the Company is exempt from the requirement to present its own profit and loss account.

# Freehold properties

Freehold land held for development is stated at cost.

#### **Taxation**

Current tax is expected tax payable on the income taxable for the period, using tax rates enacted or substantially enacted at the balance sheet date and any adjustments to tax payable in respect to previous years.

Deferred taxation is provided on the full liability method on timing differences arising from the different treatment of items for accounts and taxation purposes which are expected to reverse in the future, calculated at rates at which it is estimated that tax will arise.

# **NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)**

# **Property transactions**

Acquisitions and disposal of property are accounted for upon exchange of contracts provided completion takes place prior to the date on which the accounts are approved.

# Financial instruments

The Company and its subsidiary (the 'Group') classifies financial instruments on initial recognition as financial assets and financial liabilities.

The financial assets of the Company comprise Debtors and Cash and cash equivalents. The carrying amounts approximate to their fair values, the transactions giving rise to these balances arising in the normal course of trade.

The financial liabilities of the Company comprise Creditors. They are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The carrying amounts approximate to their fair value.

# 5. Loss on ordinary activities before taxation

	2020	2019
	£	£
Loss on ordinary activities before taxation is stated after charging:		
Audit fees for the Group (excluding VAT)	3,800	3,750

# 6. Directors' emoluments and staff costs

The emoluments of the Directors who were the only employees of the Company were:

	2020	2019
	£	£
C P Latilla-Campbell	5,000	5,000
D C Marshall	5,000	5,000
E J Beale	5,000	5,000
	15,000	15,000

The services of Messrs D C Marshall and Mr E J Beale were supplied by their primary employers and their fees are ceded to their primary employers.

# 7. Tax on ordinary activities

	2020	2019
	£	£
Tax expense is based on profit for the year and represents:		
UK Corporation Tax		

The tax assessed for the year is lower than the standard rate of corporation tax in the United Kingdom at 19% (2019: 19%). The differences are explained as follows:

Loss on ordinary activities before tax	(11,529)	(22,155)
Corporation tax at 19% (2019 – 19%) Losses carried forward	(2,191) 	(4,209) 4,209
	•	

# NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

8.	Loss	per	share
----	------	-----	-------

		2020	2019
		£	£
	Loss per share is based on the profit/loss on ordinary activities after taxation and on 50,995,718 (2019 –		
	50,995,718) being the weighted average number of		40.00
	shares in issue during the year.	(0.02)p	(0.04)p
9.	Freehold property		
	• • •		0040
	Group	2020 £	2019 £
	Freehold land at cost, brought forward and carried	~	-
	forward	42,125	42,125
	No depreciation is provided on freehold land		
10.	. Investment in subsidiary undertaking		
		2020	2019
		£	£
	Dougalston Limited	400	400
	At cost – brought forward and carried forward	160_	160_
	The aggregate amount of capital and reserves and the reserves and the reserves and the reserves are some some some some some some some som	esults of this undertak	ing for the year ende
		Capital and	Profit (loss) for
			1 1011 (1000) 101
	Davidatan Himitad	reserves	the year
	Dougalston Limited	<u>-</u>	
	Dougalston Limited  Dougalston Limited, a dormant wholly-owned subsidiar freehold property and is incorporated in England.	reserves £2	the year £2
11.	Dougalston Limited, a dormant wholly-owned subsidiar	reserves £2	the year £2
11.	Dougalston Limited, a dormant wholly-owned subsidiar freehold property and is incorporated in England.  Creditors – due within one year	reserves £2 ny company, holds th	the year £2  e title to the Group's
11.	Dougalston Limited, a dormant wholly-owned subsidiar freehold property and is incorporated in England.  Creditors – due within one year  Group and Company	reserves £2 ny company, holds the	the year £2  the title to the Group's 2019
11.	Dougalston Limited, a dormant wholly-owned subsidiar freehold property and is incorporated in England.  Creditors – due within one year  Group and Company  Trade creditors	reserves £2  ny company, holds the 2020 £ 7,727	the year £2  the title to the Group's  2019 £ 3,624
11.	Dougalston Limited, a dormant wholly-owned subsidiar freehold property and is incorporated in England.  Creditors – due within one year  Group and Company	reserves £2 ny company, holds the	the year £2  the title to the Group's 2019
	Dougaiston Limited, a dormant wholly-owned subsidiar freehold property and is incorporated in England.  Creditors – due within one year  Group and Company Trade creditors Accruals and deferred income	reserves £2 ny company, holds the 2020 £ 7,727 4,600	the year £2  the title to the Group's  2019 £ 3,624 4,500
	Dougaiston Limited, a dormant wholly-owned subsidiar freehold property and is incorporated in England.  Creditors – due within one year  Group and Company Trade creditors Accruals and deferred income	reserves £2 ny company, holds th 2020 £ 7,727 4,600 12,327	the year £2  the title to the Group's  2019 £ 3,624 4,500 8,124
	Dougaiston Limited, a dormant wholly-owned subsidiar freehold property and is incorporated in England.  Creditors – due within one year  Group and Company Trade creditors Accruals and deferred income	reserves £2 ry company, holds th 2020 £ 7,727 4,600 12,327	the year £2  2019 £ 3,624 4,500 8,124
	Dougalston Limited, a dormant wholly-owned subsidiar freehold property and is incorporated in England.  Creditors – due within one year  Group and Company Trade creditors Accruals and deferred income  Share capital  Called up, allotted and fully paid	reserves £2 ny company, holds th 2020 £ 7,727 4,600 12,327	the year £2  the title to the Group's  2019 £ 3,624 4,500 8,124
	Dougaiston Limited, a dormant wholly-owned subsidiar freehold property and is incorporated in England.  Creditors – due within one year  Group and Company Trade creditors Accruals and deferred income	reserves £2 ry company, holds th 2020 £ 7,727 4,600 12,327	the year £2  2019 £ 3,624 4,500 8,124
	Dougalston Limited, a dormant wholly-owned subsidiar freehold property and is incorporated in England.  Creditors – due within one year  Group and Company Trade creditors Accruals and deferred income  Share capital  Called up, allotted and fully paid  50,995,718 Ordinary shares of 1p each	reserves £2 ny company, holds the 2020 £ 7,727 4,600 12,327	the year £2  2019 £ 3,624 4,500 8,124  2019 £

# NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

# 13. Share premium account

	2020	2019
	£	£
At 1 July	26,534	26,534
Costs of rights issue	•	-
Balance carried forward	26,534	26,534

# 14. Related parties

The section on Related Party disclosures gives details of the interests of the Directors in any material transactions. Other than as disclosed below, and in Note 6, no Director was interested in any contract between the Directors, the Company and any other related parties which subsisted during or at the end of the financial year.

Messrs D C Marshall and E J Beale are Directors of City Group·PLC, which received fees of £2,400 (2019: £3,000) for the provision of office, accounting and company secretarial services to the Company. There was an amount of £3,810 due to City Group PLC from the Group at 30 June 2020 (2019 - £1,850).

# 15. Related Undertakings

In accordance with section 409 of the Companies Act 2006, a full list of related undertakings, the country of incorporation and the percentage of equity owned, directly or indirectly, as at 30 June 2020, is disclosed below:

Company	Country	Ownership
Dougalston Limited	United Kingdom	100%